Accounting for Lawyers – Siegel, Fall 2003




INTRODUCTION:
I.
What does accting tell us?
A.  
What does it tell you?
1.
10-K – required of every company w/ security registered under 9(g) of Sec. Act of ‘34. 
2.
Mgmt’s Disc. & Anal. of Financial Condition and Results of Ops: pp. 21-69; narrative.
3.
10-Ks contain core material: p. 70 begins financial stuff (balance sheets, statements of earnings, statements of cash flow, statement of owner’s equity).  All else spins off (but is not necessarily derived from it).  After financial info, pp. 76-120, are “integral” notes.

4.
When accountants speak of “accting,” they mean entire process of gathering/researching info, recording info, summarizing it.  (Transaction ( Recording in Journal & Entry into Legend (“bookkeeping”) ( Financial Statements)

5.
Two Categories of Financial Statement: 

a.
Status doc, like photo, “Balance Sheet” or “Statement of Financial Position.”  Shows, as of given date, what company owes, owns, and proprietorship.

b. 
“Statement of Income” / “Statement of Earnings” / “Statement of Cash-flow”: describes, for year, what sort of income/earnings company had.
B.  
What doesn’t it tell you?
C.  
How much can you rely on what you are reading?


1. 
Auditing
Accting Principles and Auditing Stds:
I.
Importance of Understanding Financial (as opposed to Tax) Accting
A.
Preliminary note on financial and tax accting:


1.
Financial accting and tax accting are different.

a.
Object of Tax Accting: system designed to produce tax base, w/ govn’t wanting to raise money and taxpayer wanting to avoid paying; must set up system that will preserve tax base and prevent taxpayer from paying too little.  Often produces different #s than financial accting.
b.
Object of Financial Accting: preparing info for investors and creditors.


2.
What is basis for differences?

3. 
To what extent is financial accting relevant to tax issues?  Taxpayer starts w/ income for financial purposes for tax purposes, so basis for tax is financial accting.

B.
Financial accting and auditing:

1. 
GAAP-based financial statements are principal source of data.

a.
When looking at company’s performance, look at “bottom line” (net income), b/c we like #s, not qualitative measures.
b.
Sometimes, however, quantitative measures (like unemployment or inflation) are inaccurate, b/c based on incorrect or misconstrued data.
c.
Want to know extent to which these #s capture true performance of company.  Problems are often not in true misstatements, however, just misconstrued data.
2.
GAAS is fundamental method of assurance of reliability - tells us degree to which we can find reliability in financial statements.

3.
There are other sources of info aside from financial statement that will provide important info, qualitative and quantitative, missing from financial statement.

II.
Legal Framework: body of accting principles, part legal in character, differ from one country to another, and are currently changing in US.
A.
State law is notable for:

1.
Regulation of licensing: uniform CPA exam across US, unlike law, but admission in one state doesn’t necessarily mean admission in another.
2.
General absence of accting and reporting reqs: few state corp laws require that corp file annual report, but if prepared, must be available to shareholders.  State tax returns immune from discovery, considered confidential docs unless waived.

B.
Fed law is notable for:



1.
Regulatory power of SEC:

a.
Reg power over auditing and accting: mandatory reporting reqs for registered companies, generally those w/ equity security held by more than 500 shareholders.  Many companies are outside purview of SEC.  Power to promulgate accting principles is set forth in 1934 Act.
b.
History of SEC regulation: SEC as gadfly; regs actually made by accting profession generally, then approved by SEC.



c.
Core accting regulations: S-K and S-X




d.
Likelihood of increased SEC regulation


C.
Legal basis for accting principles and auditing stds:

1.
Accting / auditing outside US: far less profession-generated reg, more statutory



a.
Treaty-based legal rules on accting and auditing




b.
Statutory principles of accting and auditing


2.
Unique US structure: 




a.
Auditing stds developed by profession

b.
Accting principles developed by profession and indep. std-setting body

3.
Virtues of each system:
a.
Statute-based is easier to use and more understandable cross-border.
b.
Profession-based is easier to modify / adapt for future circumstances.

III.
Generally Accepted Accting Principles (GAAP): (outside US, Int’l Accting Stds, aka IAS)
A.
Sources of definitive GAAP: (not in single book)
1.
Accting Research Bulletins (ARBs): ‘31-‘59, issued by org that no longer exists, addressing problems as they arose.
2.
Opinions of Accting Principles Board (APB’s): ‘60-‘73, from Amer. Institute of CPAs.
3.
Statements of Financial Accting Stds Board (FAS’s): ‘72-today, quasi-independent body.

B.
Absence of complete, hierarchical set of stds:

1.
History of development of GAAP
2.
Contrast w/ Int’l Accting Stds (IAS)

3.
Current steps toward “principle-based” accting stds


C. 
GAAP hierarchy: what rules trump other rules
1.
FASB statements / APB opinions / ARBs: from orgs issuing official opinions
a.
FASB: 7 members (5 CPAs, 2 non); financed by industry/accting profession, leads to Qs of independence.  Sarbanes-Oxley forces this to become self-sustaining.  Not govn’t agency, but does listen to govn’t.
b.
SEC could set forth accting principles for registered corps, if it wanted.  
c.
Not same abroad: Germany recently established govn’t accting stds board.
2.
FASB technical bulletins, AICPA audit & accting guides and SOPs: interpretations, don’t answer most Qs.
3.
EITF (Emerging Issues Task Force) consensi, AICPA practice bulletins: EITF is group of industry, SEC, etc. officials who consider issues which have arisen and determine by consensus what should be done; in absence of statement by FASB, there is good chance that EITF reached consensus.
4.
Other accting lit: texts not in all agreement, don’t cover issues in desired depth.
5.
Generally: rules percolate up from bottom until FASB actually deals w/.  Int’l model (IASB), however is top-down, and so doesn’t generally cover issues as deeply as FASB.  (There is FASB member on IASB.)
IV. 
Generally Accepted Auditing Stds (GAAS)


A.
Nature of audit and audit regulation:



1.
Profession: licensing, regulations, review



2.
Definitive GAAS; AICPA Auditing Stds Board



3.
Potential changes following Sarbanes-Oxley: 

a.
Arthur Andersen was clearly in violation of GAAS
b. 
Sarbanes-Oxley Bill of ‘02 established PCAOB, NGO, self-financed, w/ function of supervising accountants and adopting auditing stds.  Could accept entire body of stds issued by AICPA, and has decided to do so for now, though intention is to rewrite entire thing.
B.
Stds of GAAS: basically 10 stds, in 3 categories

1.
General Stds: including competence, supervision and independence:

a.  
Staff must have adequate training
b.
Independence: heart of auditing process; auditor must be in fact and appearance independent of company (can’t own stock, have significant financial interest, sit on board, be EE of, etc.); marks crucial difference b/tw accting and legal profs, b/c lawyer is rep of client, auditor must be independent of client.  
c.
Due professional care should be exercised

2.
Field Work Stds: including planning internal control and evidentiary matter.
a.
Planning and supervision: audit must be planned and supervised; always begins w/ audit program, doc listing what is done, who does it, w/ every step signed on program by who does it.
b.
System of internal control: checks and balances to ensure that docs and records are properly made and assets don’t disappear (i.e. every check over $500 must have 2 signatures, etc)
c.
There must be sufficient competent financial matter to validate conclusions: auditor must validate all data independently of company.
3.
Reporting stds:
a.
Auditor’s report must state whether financial statements are presented in accordance w/ GAAP.

b. 
Auditor must examine for consistency w/ GAAP.

c.
Auditor must render opinion and give informative disclosure on all aspects bearing on audit.
The Financial Statements: Balance Sheet, Statement of Income:

I. 
Intro:


A.
What are principal financial statements?
1.
Balance sheet, or statement of financial position (p. 73): statement of status; lists, as of end of annual or fiscal year, the assets, liabilities, and net worth of company.  Is like photo, time freeze on status of company, b/c all #s are changing constantly.  
2.
Statement of income/earnings (p. 72): statement of performance (not status) over time period, generally 1 year.  Sets forth performance in terms of revenue and expense.
3.
Statement of cash flows (p. 74): statement of performance (not status).  Easiest to understand, is “bean counting”; reflects only dollars in and dollars out.  
a.  
Not same as statement of income b/c measuring different things; in cash flow, we measure cash in and out, in income, we measure earnings.
b.
Example: lawyer does $50,000 of work in ‘02, but not paid until ‘03.  Income in ‘02 is $50,000, cash flow is $0.  Income in ‘03 is $0, cash flow is $50,000.  (Cash flow, not income, buys groceries.)
4.
Statement of stockholders’ equity (p. 75): statement summarizing investments and distributions to stockholders; can be derived from other statements.

B.
General observations on statements:
1.
Multiple years disclosed and audited: SEC regs say different #s for different sheets

a.
Balance sheets: two years

b.
Income statements and cash flows: three years

c. 
Comparative data as analytical tool: best tool possible for analyzing trends; series of data points tend to show where company is going.  Accting helps to separate expectations from reality.

2.
General observation: multiple corp structure mandates “consolidated balance sheet,” w/ parents and subsidiaries w/ various percentages owned.

3.
Notes: “The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.”  Often, informative disclosures are found in notes.

a.
Parents not liable for debts of subsidiary, but if you are lending to subsidiary, best info you can get is in details.  
4.
Balance sheet and income statement are “articulated”: means that in American GAAP, if you go from one balance sheet to next, connection b/tw two is income statement, nothing goes into one statement w/o affecting other.

C.
Realization and recognition in acting:


1.
Realization concept: relies on transaction-based recording and reporting

a.
Realization: assign revenue and expenses to time when economically earned, so these match up.

b.  
Income is realized when company performs all acts necessary to elicit payment (perform service, send bill, etc.), but no need to get payment yet. 
c.
Expenses also realized when accrued, no matter when paid.  (Dec. electric bill is realized at end of Dec., even if you wait until Feb. to pay.)

d.
Recognition: writing down a transaction.  Some kinds of realized income may not be recognized (for tax purposes), or may be deferred in recognition.
e.
Example 1: if you bill someone in ‘03 (realized income), but they don’t pay, in ‘04 you write off loss due to bad debt.

f.
Example 2: business buys truck w/ useful life of 5 years, accting requires value of truck be recorded each year, despite fact it’s not actual transaction.

2.
Items not appearing on statements: not allowed by acting principles to be put on
a.
Non-purchased assets (e.g., self-generated inventions): HP could internally generate invention (printer / microprocessor); Microsoft develops software, etc.  
i.
Don’t show value or cost on balance sheet; if it cost $10 million to make, this is required to be written off immediately as cost.  Value of invention does not appear on balance sheet as profit, however.  
ii.
Future value of patents is not shown, but if company decides to sell, it does appear. Revenues from sale / licensing do appear, but actual value does not.
iii.
Problems in both directions b/c values of company are systematically understated, though if such things were valued as assets, values would often be systematically overstated.  This method avoids value judgment as to what non-purchased asset is worth (fear from ‘29 crash is influence), but operates as to leave out data, distorting actual value of company.
iv.
End result: value isn’t shown, cost gets written down immediately.  But, can put note disclosure, such that “HP has made investments in R&D in amount of X, which we believe may result in profits in excess of costs.”
b.
Gain contingencies: company might have gains that they have not realized yet, such as results from lawsuit likely to be successful and lucrative.  (But, have to disclose loss contingencies, from potential loss, lawsuits, etc.)
c.
Contract rights and obligations not yet “realized”: when you enter into contract, that doesn’t necessarily give rise to asset / liability.  Only when performance actually occurs is there anything to write down.
3.
Alert to recent developments that alter core concepts:

a. 
“Fair value” in recent accting principles: while most principles are cost-based, recently there has been move to use of “fair value” #s instead.
b.
Call for greater disclosure of self-generated assets: flaw that results in distortion, often in Enron-like cases.

D.
For whom are financial statements prepared:


1.
US view: investors and creditors

2.
IAS view: multiple users (unions, govn’t, taxing authorities, public, etc.)
3.
Which view is more sound?  Both.
II. 
The Balance Sheet:
A.
Left and right sides:  ASSETS = LIABILITIES + OWNERS EQUITY (turn 90 degrees)


1.
Assets: whatever things of value a business owns


2.
Liabilities: claims against assets 
3.
Net Worth (Owners Equity): whatever portion of assets are not claimed
4.
Generally:

a.
Forget debits left, credits right!  Words are only directional.  If bank credits account, this means they have placed entry on right of balance sheet.
b.
Must define entity: business is whatever we define it as.  If prepare statement for Siegel personally, entity is him and all he owns.  If prepare statement for Siegel Consulting, it is just what business owns, not what Siegel himself owns.
c.
“Double-entry bookkeeping”: huge leap in IT (on par w/ movable type).

B.
Current Assets: listed from most to least liquid. Liquidity means ability to pay debts.  Balance sheet shows expected cash flow, is one of best indicators of business health.  
1.
Cash and cash equivalents: 
a.
“Cash” normally not just money in hand but bank accounts immediately accessible for purposes of payment (distinguishing checking from savings, etc.).
b.
“Cash equivalents” generally some short term investment that is nearly cash.  Ex. “commercial paper,” form of lending, corp-to-corp, rotating on daily basis.
2.
Short-term investments: normally this investments company makes in stocks and bonds, not w/ object of holding on l-t or permanently or for gaining control of company which investment is in.  Instead, done b/c company may have excess cash, so invests in derivatives for purpose of hedging themselves against exposure to various kinds of risk (i.e. to lock in exchange rate).

a.
Valuation best described as marked-to-mkt, unlike a lot of accting #s.  Value on sheet is mkt price of that package of investments as of day sheet is dated.

b.
Arguments in favor of showing these at mkt value is that it can be found easily, so there is no Q of valuation, but cost to company has little relevance given nature of stock mkt.

c.
Investments not publicly tradable are listed at cost, subject to impairment rule.  (But these are not common.)

3.
Accounts receivable and uncollectible: represents amount of money owed to company as result of selling on credit.  Involves judgment calls on collectability!
a. 
Cycle of business usually carried on is one of sales taking place on credit (open account).  In personal situation, if pay promptly, like credit card, no interest, but if you don’t, there is a lot.  In corp setting, several remedies, besides interest, exist to paying slowly – company could close account of other party, or place limit on ability to buy.  
b.
Will company collect all money?  Only if:

i.
They send out “enforcers,” (unlikely), or 
ii.
They have extremely tight credit policy, extending credit only to those certain to pay.  Credit policy is matter of dialing in amount of risk you are willing to accept.

c.
HP estimates (through historical records, statistically powerful predictor of future) portion that won’t pay is ~ 5%.  As debt ages, likelihood of payment decreases.  (“Allowance for doubtful accounts” is nice way of saying, “those we don’t expect to pay.”)
d.
One of most litigated areas arising subsequent to acquisition agreement is subject of uncollectible accounts.  Primarily brought against company that made sale, but often also against accting firm that created balance sheet, b/c this could have been misstated.

4.
Financing Receivables: HP sells equipment on financing terms, allowing payment over period of time, playing role as lender/credit-extender as well as seller.  These carry interest, so this is form of investment, interest-bearing account. 
5.
Inventories: measured by lower-of-cost-or-mkt; two types, depending on business:

a.
Merchandising Inventory: Tower Records, holding of inventory as intermediary.

i.
Ex: Tower Records has 10 CDs, purchased for $6 each, on sale for $12.  Inventory carried on balance sheet at cost, so carrying balance is $60.  What if CDs don’t sell or mkt value decreases?  Cost rule prevails, unless mkt value drops before end of year.  Then, you must “write down” cost.
b.
Manufacturing Inventory: that which starts off in form of raw materials and gets assembled w/in company. Good companies know precisely what each item costs to manufacture.  HP will have:

i.
Finished goods: valued w/ elaborate process using components of cost of (a) material, (b) labor (actual direct labor used in manufacture), and (c) allocation of overhead cost.  
ii.
Raw materials

iii.
Work in progress


c.
Valuation requires two judgment calls b/c: 

i.
Inventory is required to be shown on balance sheet at lower-of-cost-or-mkt.  Normally, carry inventory at cost, but there will be inventory in each business that has some issue that will make mkt value lower than cost.  Bias arises from conservatism; if there is decline in value, you must write down, even before you dispose of goods, but if there is increase, you cannot write up until you sell.  (For tax purposes, SC held that lower-of-cost-or-mkt is not permitted, must use cost unless inventory is junked, sold, etc.  Cannot write up or down before you sell.)
ii.
For certain items, it’s possible to adopt multiple, different principles for determining what inventory will be for accting purposes.  Principle used must be disclosed in notes, here on p. 78 n. 1, saying inventory is calculated on first-in, first-out basis.

d. 
Second most-litigated w/ acquisitions is obsolete inventory, which shouldn’t appear on balance sheet at cost, but should have been written down.

5.
Other Current Assets: generally represent expenses of some kind that company has pre-paid for coming year (taxes, interest, rent, bills, supplies).  Expenditures made before used up, but which will be used in course of year.
C.
Property, plant, and equipment: hard, fixed assets (land, buildings, machinery, etc.) w/ “useful life,” though land is thought to have un-ltd life.  Issues w/ respect to fixed assets will be three:
1.
How to calculate Cost Basis?: historical cost (in historical $s).  If purchased for $10 million, carried at $10 million, regardless of current value.  Judgment call!

a.
What do we mean by cost?  

i.
Machinery: price of machine plus everything it takes to get and install it.  

ii.
Building: in construction, even cost of financing would be included.  

iii.
Land: purchase price plus everything that had to be put in to prepare land for use, such as tearing down / moving of buildings.  

iv. 
Improvements (to any): added to cost at time made.

b.
Problem, for tax purposes: not taking into account change in value of $, so that purchase at $10 and sale at $100 doesn’t necessarily imply $90 gain.  Therefore, IRS is taxing original purchase price, or inflation.

2.
How to account for Depreciation and Amortization?: allocation of costs over time.  (Used as transitive verb, we depreciate something, something does not depreciate.)  


a.
Depreciation: used for tangible assets; two main types:

i. 
Straight-line: marking down price in equal portions each year, either by percentage of cost or some other measure, like basis of miles.  

· Ex: treat truck w/ 5 year lifespan, as form of pre-paid expense, writing down (depreciating) value by 1/5 each year, allocating cost over time.  (Don’t take into account actual loss in mkt value, such as when you drive car off lot, it loses much resale value, but only talks about purchase price.)  If truck lasts 6 years, it’s no longer carried on balance sheet b/c all value has been written down, but it is carried on books w/ value of $0 (cost = $50,000, depreciation = $50,000).  

· Often happens that asset is depreciated down to 0 but kept on books.

· “Useful life” is actually calculated fairly accurately.

ii.
Accelerated: write off more in early years, for tax purposes.
· p. 78 describes HP methods, both straight-line and accelerated.  Useful lives given in broad ranges.  Would have to go to company to get more specific details, but investors wouldn’t have access to that info.

iii.
On HP balance sheet, value in ‘02 is about $7 bil, reflecting accumulated depreciation of $5.6 bil, about 40% of total costs (5.6 + 7 = 12.6).  By looking at percentage that depreciation is of total cost, you can see how old assets are.  It’s not good to see depreciation at something like 80% + of total cost.  If depreciation were $1 bil, this means everything is new.

iv.
If component of property, plant, equipment is sold, it would no longer be shown.  Balance sheet would show gain/loss on sale; in most cases, sale would be shown as increase/decrease in depreciation of property for year (adjustment).

b.
Amortization: used for intangible assets, like patents, licenses, etc.  Ten-year license purchased for $10 mil is intangible asset, value of which should be written off over time.

i.
Fixed assets are reflected at cost, not mkt / current value, so this places pressure on lawyers, acquiring companies, etc. to go out and figure out what real value of assets are.  So, balance sheet provides info, but is not as useful as it could be.  Siegel thinks current value should be listed, to make balance sheets more fully disclosing and informational.

3.
What do to when predictions are erroneous?  Sometimes asset suffers substantial impairment in value (i.e., computer equip. purchased, then technology changed, utility of asset drops).  GAAP requires you to write down loss/impairment as of date incurred (conservative notion).  While you do not regularly write down assets to reflect mkt value, if there is evidence of impairment, this is written down immediately.

D.
Other Assets:

1.
Long-term investments (i.e., “l-t financing receivables and other assets”): HP is engaged in selling hardware, but also in financing sales, so earns interest on notes receivable. 
a.
Why not sell it and have someone else finance it?  HP increases sales by making financing part of selling.  Also, interest rate is usually higher than HP would realized from investing on mkt.



2.
Intangibles



3.
Goodwill

E.
Liabilities: claims against assets (along w/ shareholders’ equity); generally listed in order of legal priority, that which must be paid in cash first; so OE is always subordinate to debt (no obligation to repurchase stock or pay dividend), and this distinguishing factor b/tw debt and OE.  But, sometimes hard to distinguish b/tw them as some are hybrids, such that it is called “stock” but is required to be paid back, or it is called “bond” but doesn’t have to be repaid.
1.
Current liabilities and current portion of long-term debt: must be paid in coming year, also listed in order in which they have to be repaid.  (Description in notes, p. 100.)  
a.
Notes payable, short term borrowings: borrow at low rates for short-term needs, higher rates for long-term needs.
b.
Accounts payable: like credit card, but in commercial setting; do not bear interest unless customer stops making payments (and this would be high interest).
c.
EE compensation and benefits: weekly/monthly pay that has been earned by EEs but not yet paid, as balance sheet is prepared for specific day.  
d.
Taxes on earnings: system in US of estimated taxes for all business entities, and these are built up and not paid until end of quarter.
e.
Deferred revenue: basically any situation in which company is paid up front and expects to earn income in future.  Usual rule is that allocation is made on daily basis to convert liability to asset (or prepaid expense to liability).

i.
Ex 1: lawyer’s retainer which has been paid by client but not yet earned.  
ii.
Ex 2: pay up front for car insurance, but insurance company has not earned all money until end of year, so this appears as deferred revenue until services have been rendered.  
f.
Accrued restructuring: expenses incurred during acquisition of Compaq.  Termination costs, retraining costs, not yet paid, but which HP is obligated to pay.
g.
Other accrued liabilities: taxes, warranties, see p. 95 notes.
2.
Analytical tools: 
a.
Current ratio: current assets ($36 bil) over current liabilities ($24 bil), or 1.5/1.  For every $ of current liabilities, there is $-and-a-half of current assets to pay for it.  What does this tell us?  
i.
Current ratio of 2 is extremely solid, it is very unlikely that company would have trouble paying debt.  At 2+, company has too much current assets on hand (over-capitalized / over-liquid), meaning they aren’t earning anything on assets.  
ii.
At about 1.5+, company is very solid, strong.  
iii.
Below 1.5, this is questionable, b/c exact timing of cash is going to make a difference, b/c “current” asset isn’t always all that current.  
iv.
Near and below 1, likelihood of bankruptcy is high.



b.
Cash budgeting: analytical tool for cash-flow statement.
3.
Long-term debt: shown as single #, but if look at p.101 notes, it gives full accting.


4.
Deferred taxes: to be covered at later date. 
F.
Shareholders’ Equity / Net worth: depends on entity we are dealing w/.  For corp, this shows stock info.  Generally one will find three broad headings:
1.
Common and preferred stock: HP authorized preferred stock, but none is outstanding / issued; company cannot issue stock unless Articles (or Certificate) of Inc. allow.  
a.
Increase in # of shares issued reflects acquisition of Compaq.  
b.
“Par value”: means nothing in some states, but in those that do have it (including NY, NJ, DE), this is min price at which shares could be sold.  In accting, to extent there is par value, it is amount that is separately stated on balance sheet b/c this is locked in amount of capital of company that cannot be distributed to shareholder.  Par value was never amount at which stock was sold by corp.
2.
Additional paid-in capital: result of acquisition of Compaq.  This is protection of shareholders and can be paid back, unlike common and preferred stock par value.
3.
Retained earnings: accumulated, re-invested, undistributed earnings.  May be distributed; shows what portion of initial investment was re-invested and what portion was built up over time.  Half of investment generally comes from reinvestment of earned income, some from debt, and small portion from issuance of stock.  Also shows extent to which, when corp pays out to shareholders, this pay out is dividend, taxable to shareholders.

a.
Earned surplus: used to be on balance sheet, excommunicated in ‘45, but sometimes seen today; language still appears in DE and NY incorporation law, but it is interpreted today to mean “retained earnings.”

4.
Accumulated income: less than paid-in capital, very unusual. Year ‘01 is more typical
5. 
General: if you take total net worth and compare it to total stock market price, net worth is generally lower, b/c balance sheet understates value of corp by not including current value and other items.  If stock mkt value is lower than value on balance sheet, this is corp in trouble, given biases of accounting.

G.
Balance sheet, generally:

1.
Historically, prime tool for analyzing business, but now focus is on income statement, sometimes cash flow statement.

2.
Partnerships: right side of balance sheet will not equal left.  Generally have capital acct for each partner (no matter how many), representing that partner’s interest in company.   Company’s tax returns will also include K-1 for each partner.  Not same for shareholders of corps b/c shareholder interest is not same as partnership interest.

III. 
Statement of Income (aka “earnings,” or “profit and loss” in Europe)

A.
Gross profit / margin: “bottom line” is upper “net (loss) earnings” #, which shows downward trend.  Per share figure is also important to some.  These tell end result of everything, but are not of utmost importance (comparable to GPA, or world series win) b/c these are historical #s, not necessarily predictive of future.  Important to analyze all data to get more accurate picture.  

1.
Revenues: net revenue at top; in most companies, this would be one #, but HP breaks down revenues into three categories, (which many companies would show in notes.)  While financing (interest income) looks like small #, this is one of most profitable areas.

2.
Cost of sales: what was paid for things that were sold, things that produced revenue.

3.
Analysis of gross profit: 
a.
“(Loss) earnings from operations”: shows bad trend, significant decrease in earnings b/tw ‘00 - ‘02.  This is difference b/tw cost of sales and revenue, i.e. buy CD for $7, sell it for $10, gross profit is $3.  Then subtract expenses, like rent + EE wages = $1, so net profit is $2.  When profit margin narrows, this makes it very difficult to pay rent, EEs, etc.  This is most important component of evaluating future performance of company.  

b.
Companies often subdivide gross profit by geographic area or product line, b/c costs are often broken down into very fine level of detail.  If no gross profit on manufacture, then company will fail; this is driver of decision-making.  B/c of desire to decrease manufacturing costs, many factories have moved from US.

c.
Looking at [(net revenue) – (costs and expenses)], profit margin on financing is best, followed by services, then products.
4.
Ex 1: buy for $5, sell for $8, expenses of $3 ( gross profit = $3, net income = 0.  Company has to cut expenses; as long as there is profit on sale, then there is chance of making net income.  If gross profit is 0 or less, company is finished.  First line of analysis must be whether company is making money gross, then can figure out how to do it net. 
a.
Cross-product-line price adjustment: interesting method for doing this, like selling Polaroid camera below cost but charging fortune for film.
5.
Ex 2: net revenue (products) = 45, cost (products) = 34.5, gross profit (products) = 11.5.
a.  
Cost (products): includes:

i.
Direct materials used to manufacture, only things that end up in product, not tools used to make it; 
ii.
Direct labor for manufacture, not supervisors/cleaners/etc; 
iii.
Overhead, including everything else directly connected to manufacture process, such as supplies/indirect materials, indirect labor (supervisory, cleaning), other overhead for manufacture, such as electricity, rent, etc.
iv.
Does not include Pres, other workers, R&D, admin costs, other things listed under costs on Earnings Statement.  

b.
Where / when something is included in costs reflects decision as to what year to carry it on balance sheet.  R&D expenses must be written off in period incurred, so never shown in cost of product, but considered costs of operation of company.

6.
Bell-weather test: whether company will be able to succeed long term depends on whether it can make gross profit.  HP gross profit is ~ 25% in ‘00, which is very good.  But, this is goes down every so slightly each year, is this a trend?

B.
Earnings from operations: next most important bottom-line consideration; there is losing trend in “earnings from operations”; shown above line, sum of net revenue and costs.

1.
Operating expenses: 

2.
R&D expenses:

3.
Analysis of earnings from operations: why is net income going down?  In part b/c of restructuring charges that HP paid as result of acquisition of Compaq.  Also, selling expenses have increased, despite fact that sales only went up a little.


C.
Net earnings:

1. 
Financial expenses and income: interest, investments, etc.  (Another type of interest, not income interest listed above.  “Financing interest,” is part of cost of goods sold.)


2.
Provision for income taxes:

** Net (loss) earnings from continuing operations . . . – bottom line before anything extraordinary.**
3.
Extraordinary items: important, non-recurring items.  Fiorina might have wanted to include acquisition of Compaq here, in order to make operations appear better, but b/c this will have effects over several years, it would be difficult to do so.


** Net (loss) earnings at bottom – after extraordinary items.**
D.
Earnings per share: following all above is per share info, translated from above 

1.
Complexity of calculation: far more so than it appears, not just net income divided by # of shares, b/c those are not each one #.  
a.
Earnings are not one # b/c we have net income from ops, net income after extra. items, etc.  Use all #s, have multiple EPS figures.  (None of #s are “right.”)  
b.
Shares are also not one #, b/c of acquisition, other reasons shares outstanding fluctuates.  Also, there are stock options and other shares that are outstanding, so how to take this into account?


2.
Variations: dilution, extraordinary items:

The Statement of Cash Flows

I.  
Net Income v. Cash Flow 

A.
Net income:

1.
Realization, recognition and periodic allocation: assigning to each period income and expense economically assigned to it.  Timing of receipt of cash is not necessarily time of recognition of income.

2.
Matching of costs against related revenues: income statements match expenses against sales, but this doesn’t have anything to do w/ cash flow; myriad judgment problems here.


3.
Timing of cash flows usually ignored in income statement.
4.
Effects of choice of different accounting principles: income statement and bottom line thereof are always questionable b/c isn’t possible to make objective income statement.  (i.e. Doctor metaphor, patient sick, 3 doctors w/ 3 different diagnoses, but there is an objective reality.)  No objective reality of net income, i.e. what’s best brew of coffee.

5.
Effects of judgment differences in applying accounting principles: objectivity is really in statement of cash flows, though this is inherently judgmental as well.

6.
Current criticisms of variability in accounting principles and judgments: although some components of judgment could be eliminated, many cannot, particularly those based on expected future principles (i.e. useful life of computer / truck, subject to unforeseen events, like breakage or new technology).


B.
Cash flow: “counting” doc, not “accounting” doc.
1.
Apparently simple concept: cash in, cash out, divided into operations, financing, or investing; a bit of judgment required, but transparent.



2.
Direct and indirect measurement of cash flows: complications!
a.
Direct: simply record every time cash comes in or goes out, like putting meter on it (cash register).  Collecting and verifying info is very difficult, but it is done.

b.
Indirect: work backward from net income.  Add back non-cash charges, like tax write offs.  Used by 95% of US companies. 
i.
Shown in HP “operations” cash flow: start w/ net income, then adjust to reconcile net earnings to net cash.  Looking at net income, HP is losing money in last few years, but cash provided by activities is increasing, so we have conflicting story about relative health of operations.
ii.
Bottom # should be approx. same w/ either method.  But, info b/tw top and bottom will differ – directly calculated cash flow gives new info not shown here or elsewhere on sheets (cash from sales, cash for admin payments, etc.), while indirectly calculated cash flow just shows adjustments otherwise available in financial statements.  Company will almost always pick method which reveals less.  (Compaq used direct method, but HP ditched it.)

3.
Major difference b/tw cash flow and net income: non-cash allocations and charges 
a.
Ex 1: original cost of bldg is $100,000, useful life of 20 years.  Bldg rented out at $1000 /month, maintenance of $60, depreciate at $5000 / yr.  (  Income statement will say, rental revenue = (12 x $1000) = $12,000, less expenses = (12 x $60) + $5000 = 5720.  Cash flow used to find net income of $6280.


What if we don’t want to watch money coming in and going out?  Work it out backwards/indirectly (  Start w/ net income of $6280.  Add back cost /yr, $5000, = $11280, which is cash flow.

For both accting and tax, write off portion of bldg and receive non-cash charge.

b.
Ex 2: imagine situation in which rental revenue of $12000 / yr is paid at end of mth, so company only gets $11,000 in 2003. You have to reflect change in accounts receivable, b/c it shows $12,000 revenue, but only $11,000 in cash flow.  

4.
Operational relevance of cash flow: company’s ability to avoid bankruptcy is indirectly related to net income, but directly related to cash flow.  If there’s money to pay creditors, even if generating net loss, can’t be thrown into bankruptcy (by institutional attack) and can stay alive indefinitely.

5.
Does reporting of cash flow avoid criticisms and defects of reporting net income?  

a.
Debate w/in accounting industry about switching to mandatory use of directly calculated cash flow statement, which is useful for making future projections.

b.
Tremendous criticism, even before Enron, etc., about reporting of net income so as to distort earnings.  Cash flow is partially immune to accounting foolishness (choice of principles, timings, etc.), b/c you can see disconnect b/tw income statement and cash flow statements even in Enron instance.  Cash flow is far less subject to judgment calls, but not immune, b/c company can have “false transactions” undiscoverable w/o audit.

c.
For tax purposes, some taxpayers can choose b/tw accrual method and cash/ receipts/disbursements method (pay taxes on only money received, not all that’s been recognized).  Second method allows taxpayer to shift timing and tax burden.

II.  
The Statement of Cash Flows: mandated by FAS 95, w/ appendix (as definitive as official pronouncement) w/ illustrations/instructions.


A. 
Direct and indirect cash flow calculations: see above.
B. 
Categories of cash flow and their relevance (mandated headings): we draw different meaning from positive/negative status in each category.
1. 
Operating activities (reconciliation with net earnings): activities that constitute main activities of company.  For HP, these are sales, services, and financing.  
a.
What’s difference b/tw operating activities (financing) and actual financing activities?  Operating activities (financing) are operations for banks, mortgage companies, and part of HP, it’s what they do to generate income.  (Like GMAC.)  Judgment call as to how to list things – depends on how company views its operations; we are dependent on judgments.  
i.
Ex: this is particularly difficult in creating cash flow of bank.  But, judgment only depends on what line to put something on, reader can choose to put it on different line; judgments concerning useful life, for example, are more opaque.

b.
Core proposition: we expect company, whether it is making net income or net profit, to have positive cash flow.  If it’s day-to-day ops are draining out cash, it is emptying out cash reservoir and is on the way to failure.  Company can only stay in business or reward its investors, if it turns it around or liquidates.  Negative cash flow counsels toward immediate investigation.  (But, we could have start-up company expected to turn around shortly.)


2. 
Investing activities:

a.
Core proposition: you expect any company to be paying out money for these activities, so negative number is not particularly bad.  Generally, we would expect to see cash from investing as negative.  This means that net, it is putting money into investing activities.

b.
Ex of positive cash flow: mining company who does not own its mines.  Normal cycle of business is to buy things, which wear out, then buy new ones.  But in mining, oil runs out, so no reinvestment; called a “liquidating company.”

c.
“Cash acquired through business acquisitions”: in ‘02, HP acquired Compaq, in bulk by issuing stock.  And, b/c they acquired Compaq whole, w/o shredding off cash, what came into HP was not only operations, but also cash.

d.
“Growth Companies”: each year, HP sells off lots of property, plant, and equip, but also invests in same, not as largely.  Also, each year, either sell off or make income on investments, but not huge new investment (HP’s not heavily into reinvestment).  Generally, companies who are reinvesting substantially are “growth companies,” so it is curious that HP is not, considering it is in area of economy that should be growing; we can extrapolate that they aren’t going anywhere fast, though they are not dead-in-the-water.  (If we looked at Microsoft, it would be reinvesting heavily.) 

3. 
Financing activities: raising money for carrying on of company’s entire business.  Includes issuance of bonds and stock, payment of dividends, etc.  This is financing of company itself.

a.
Notes payable / short-term borrowing: FASB decided to include these here, though they could have been included in ops.  

b.
Ownership of your own stock: always, w/o exception, shown as reduction of capital, and not as an asset.  But, companies do occasionally buy back stock, as an investment of sort, to drive up value.

c.
Predictive value: no way of predicting in advance what #s will be; but can learn gross, whether company is increasing or reducing financing level (reduction would mean reduction in debt or in shareholder financing).  Look at first two lines on HP, money is fungible, and company has basically converted short-term financing to long-term (given economy, this makes great sense.)

d.
Issuance of stock under EE stock plans: cash; whatever stock was issued, some cash came in, such as if stock option was exercised.  
i.
How are stock options shown on balance sheet?  As receipt of cash, issuance of stock at lower price.  FASB proposes that there be charge shown; imagine exec receives option to buy stock at 20, present price is 20, but this is expected to go up.  When, if ever, do you reflect difference?  
· Siegel’s proposition: at time option is exercised (supposed price is now 100), company shows cash received of 20, compensation expense of 80, and stock issued at 100.  (This is treatment in tax code, exec has 80 income and company has 80 expense, deductible.)  Won’t happen b/c, say this generated 42 mil for exec, company would have to put 42 mil expense on books.  
· Probable outcome: company reflects this immediately as expense and writes it off over period of time, using option-pricing model to estimate price.  Objection that companies have made, is that if they have to show expense for this, it will cause them to eliminate plans.

e.
Repurchase of common stock: generally happens so that they can issue it under stock option plans b/c ER doesn’t really want to issue new stock for this.

f.
Core proposition: negative number is neither good or bad, means company is paying down debt.


C. 
Cash flow as a test of real earnings and earning power:



1. 
Net loss companies with positive cash flows.



2. 
Net losses combined with negative cash flow; e.g., e-commerce.

III. Other Cash Flow Concepts

A. 
Cash flow as a test of asset impairment.


B. 
Discounted cash flow as an asset/enterprise valuation method.
Other Disclosures: Audit Report; Notes to Financial Statements; MD&A: three things required to be part of all filings. (These are what Sarbanes-Oxley, dispute at NYSE, etc., are about.)

I. 
Report of Independent Auditors: written in std formulaic language (except for 4th para.).  Accting opinion is standardized by profession, lawyer’s is not.  Statements always say, “in our opinion,” generally contain qualifications, to avoid expectation gap and liability, particularly in areas in which there is certain level of uncertainty / ambiguity.  Professions have interest in creating reliance on statements and developing credibility in what they say.  Doc designed to create but limit reliance at same time.  Two fall guys: accountants and company, but sometimes very unclear what responsibility each party had.  (Enron and Andersen both at fault, but some lawsuits out there occurred b/c market fell, not b/c loss was attributable to accountant or company.)  Accountants don’t have malpractice insurance generally, b/c no one would give it to them (but sometimes created in foreign, tax-haven jurisdiction).


A. 
“We have audited . . .”: para 1.

1. 
Audit report speaks as of date signed: at bottom, tells when info is current as of; as matter of accting principles, and law of rep when it comes to audit reports, audit report is considered to be current as of date at which it speaks, so if something takes place b/tw preparation of financial statements and date of audit report (this one’s really quick, usually takes 3 months), they have to note it if material, like devastating loss in business, etc.  (“Significant material post-balance sheet reports.”)  It doesn’t speak about any date afterwards, however; cut off time frame of audit relationship.  Audit is not of company itself, but of set of prepared financial sheets; auditors make representation each time, not considered on-going, even if same auditor works for company for 10 years.

2. 
Audit is of listed financial statements: lists every single doc audited.  Isn’t universal, elsewhere in world, audit report may extend to other things, may explicitly extend to auditing bookkeeping or control system of company; doesn’t often happen in US.

3. 
Company mgmt is responsible for statements: auditors only responsible for actual audit, not prep of statements, accting principles selected, judgments made, etc.  Primary responsibility is on mgmt.  Letter on p. 71 from mgmt, taking direct responsibility for core of statements.  Auditor has always requested this from mgmt, but only recently has this been published in 10-Ks, again to limit expectations on auditors.  Audit committee of Bd. of Directors, not part of mgmt of HP, meets regularly w/ internal and external auditors and mgmt, to review all this.  



4. 
Auditor’s responsibility is to express opinion.
B. 
Generally accepted auditing stds: para 2.  No codified account of generally accepted accting stds, but there are generally accepted auditing stds (GAAS).  No accountant required to be part of association of CPAs, no lawyer required to be part of ABA, no doctor required to be part of AMA; every auditor in US required to be part of auditor association, and body adopts principles binding on all members.  Also codified int’l stds of auditing, so when E&Y says US stds at top, that’s what they are talking about.  Each of following are required by codified stds:
1. 
Reasonable assurance of absence of material misstatements 

2. 
Exam of evidence on test basis: sort of like test drive of Porsche, but much more complicated product – expensive and labor-intensive.  

3. 
Implications of sampling: tens of thousands of pages of background, auditors simply can’t examine it all.  Audit process can’t uncover all fraud / misstatement out there, but in cases like Enron, Worldcom, Tyco, auditors did fail, knew of and participated in errors. Most audits fail b/c auditors don’t know of errors, Q is whether they should have known.

C. 
Opinion of auditors: para 3. Three qualifiers: 

1. 
Financial statements present fairly: US has used this language forever, int’l language is usually, “present a true and fair view.”  Debate b/tw advocates of each as to difference; neither side can coherently describe what either phrase means.  “True and fair” people say that this is more comprehensive.

2. 
In all material respects: at what level does an error, omission, fraud become so important for auditor to say “stop”?  
a.
$1 billion company w/ $10,000 error – not a big deal.  
b.
$1 million company w/ $10,000 error – more important.  
c.
Also depends on error – if VP took $10,000 out of cash register, this may be important to identify.



3. 
In conformity w/ generally accepted accting principles.


D. 
Qualification of opinion:

1. 
Scope limitations: something that has made it impossible for auditors to review all necessary info; if limitation of ability of auditor is material, if it significantly affects exam, then audit report has to be negative.  Many past audit frauds were based on 
failure to follow audit practices, particularly scope limitations.
2. 
Disclosure and GAAP Qs: auditors want to put as much disclosure in opinions (lawyers also work on this, as seen in pending litigation area, p. 118) as possible b/c:



a.
This helps them to avoid liability, and




b.
By nature, auditors like to disclose everything. 

3. 
“Going concern” qualification: serious matter; audit report / financial statements are prepared under assumption that company is going to continue in business, b/c value changes if it is going to be sold off.  So, reports are prepared of company that is “going concern” and will continue to be so; if there is serious threat about company as a going concern, nature of audit report changes dramatically, auditors may express doubts as to going concern, and give opinion, but more likely, auditors may not give opinion at all.


4. 
Negative opinion or denial of opinion: worst threat of auditor, would be in reaction to 



client’s insistence to presentation that auditor doesn’t agree w/.  This would immediately 



suspend trading, suspend SEC recognition.  Only other option would to fire accountant, 



get new one to agree w/ you, but if you terminate accountants, have to file 8k saying why.

E.
Aside: Mgmt Certification: all registered companies must have certification of CEO and CFO, shown in Exhibit 99.1, that financial statements fully comply w/ reporting reqs.  This is different from mgmt opinion letter, and, doesn’t say anything about accting principles, just 
that this is fair presentation.  
Not just representation w/ respect to “no material misrepresentation”, but representation of personal knowledge that financial statements present fairly.  This puts two top officers in line for criminal liability for problems w/ financial statements.  Required b/c defense generally was that chief officers didn’t know what was going on, so now this precludes that.

1.
All these reqs are creating barrier to entry to foreign companies that might have wanted to trade on NYSE, but won’t b/c they don’t want to comply w/ disclosure reqs.



2.
Internal control system: requiring vacations each year, where someone must take over 



duties of vacationing EE; signs that say one should complain if you don’t get receipt, b/c 



that EE has not put money in register.

II. 
Notes to Financial Statements: not generally required by SEC. (pp. 76-126, more than most, but generally notes are extensive.)

A. 
Notes are integral part of financial statements:



1. 
Notes are audited: often heavily.  One of biggest debates is whether something should 



appear in financial statements or notes.  Lots of elaborate #s in notes.
2. 
Disclosures under GAAP may be in statements or notes: efficient mkt hypothesis says it makes no difference where disclosure appears (statements, notes, audit report), so long as it does appear.  But accting profession and SEC don’t agree, saying that people don’t tend to think in terms of entire structure of available facts, but in terms of frames (EPS, financial statement, etc.), so it makes a difference where it appears.
3. 
Contrast notes with MD&A, commentary, etc.: different disclosure doc, appears at beginning of 10K.  Core difference is info content, MD&A is a little more forward, outward, prospective looking, and MD&A is not audited.  So as to whether something appears in footnotes or MD&A, it matters.


B. 
Note 1:  summary of significant accting policies:



1. 
Provides detail on which GAAP were applied, and how: which, among permissible 



methods, were used?  Company has choice.
a.
Ex: p. 78, Inventory: valued at lower of cost or mkt, w/ cost computed at first-in, first-out basis (2 principles).  
b.
More elaborate description of Property, Plant, and Equip: not only describing principles, but also a bit of text-book description of principles and application.  This even explains change in principles used from year to year, and reflects effect and discloses change in accting principles; std assumption of “consistency” w/ respect to financial statements is that whatever principles applied in past will be continued; “applied in a consistent basis” was terminology of auditing in past, but now its
dropped b/c consistency is required, unless there is disclosure of change.  If there was change that affected past financial statements, this would have to be shown in first footnote as well.



2. 
Some – but not all – judgments are explained: in addition to methods, company has to 



choose what judgments to make in accordance w/ those principles.



3.
Examples of Notes:




a.
Note 1 is 7 pages, elaborate discussion of all ground rules of principles applied.

b.
p77, Services: every sentence is operative, as this is multi-liability extending doc, over company and auditors.  When you read notes, you are seeing what company is disclosing, but also seeing what company is not making clear.  HP is model of clear and transparent disclosure, unlike Enron or Worldcom.

c.
p76, Acquisitions: textbook description.  Read notes carefully!  Some of most important disclosures are not shown in actual financial statements but are in notes.

d.
Cash or cash equivalents: investments are considered cash equivalents if they mature w/in 3 months of purchase date.  Siegel says this is over-broad, that cash should only include only those things w/ very short maturities.




e.
p80, Investments: describing nature of; short-term have maturities of < 1 year.

f.
p81, Foreign Currency Translation: re-measuring of various items w/ different methods, using current rates for assets and liabilities, except for inventory, property, plant, and equipment which are re-measured at historic rates.

g.
p81, Recent Pronouncements: very elaborate; designed to illustrate
effects to accting principles of company that have been wrought by changes in accting principles generally (by FASB pronouncements).  141 and 142, as well as 144, reflect most significant changes.


C. 
Earnings per share calculation: note #2.
1.
What EPS is: doesn’t translate directly into dividends, shows only what company earned on each share, which they may choose to distribute or not.

2.
Importance of EPS: not distributed to shareholders, but if company has earned $2 / share, then shareholders are more wealthy b/c stock price has gone up, they have earned money.

3.
Does progression of EPS figure meaning anything?  Some dispute, corp fin people believe in concept of mkt efficiency that says that EPS figure tells nothing about what will happen next year.  Not entirely true, if you go behind #s.  Also (v. important), in US at least, EPS is bell-weather test of performance of managers of company.  “Shareholder value” means 50% growth in EPS.  Consistence growth in earnings performance is what seems to drive mkt reaction to company.

a.
Does it matter if there are multiple classes of shares (common, preferred)?  Need to look at numerator and denominator.  Calculate EPS only for class that has residual share of income.  Generally preferred is preferential, but ltd.  So EPS is calculated by taking total earnings, subtracting out earnings allocable to preferred, then dividing by # of shares of common stock outstanding.

i.
Numerator: what if company’s earnings are not all of same character?  Earned $1 mil, $600,000 from selling off ops in Cent. Am., $400,000 from normal ops.  For EPS, divided into 2 categories, gains/losses from extra. events and net earnings from continuing ops.  See p. 84 (discontinued ops #, extra. ops #, etc.)  If anything unusual in EPS #, or if there is change in accting principles, then there will be at least two EPS figures.  

ii.
Denominator: company always issues more shares, buys back shares, etc.  Denominator is always calculated w/ weighted average of shares outstanding during year. Also, companies have shares that may become outstanding (convertible shares – preferred to common, debt to common; exec stock options, etc.) at some point in future. So, exercise of stock option will drive down (dilute) EPS for existing stock. So, these are shown separately in the EPS figures, w/ “basic net EPS” and “diluted net EPS.”

b.
So, there should probably be about 4 EPS figures (pre-/post-dilution, w/ and w/o extraordinary items).  No right answer as to which is EPS #.  Tendency is for people to look at EPS before extraordinary items and taking into account dilution when assessing performance.


D. 
Financial details on material transactions:



1. 
Investment gains and losses.



2. 
Discontinued operations.



3. 
Acquisitions and divestitures.


E. 
Detailed disclosures on components of financial statements:



1. 
Balance sheet: inventory, fixed assets, long-term investments.



2. 
Financial instruments, including derivatives.



3. 
Leases and financing receivables.



4. 
Borrowings.



5. 
Income taxes.



6. 
Capital structure.


F. 
Supplementary financial disclosures:



1. 
Comprehensive income.



2. 
Cash flow details.



3. 
Retirement and post-retirement benefits.

4. 
Litigation and contingencies: note 17; HP has listed under debts those currently owing, but what about contingencies?  Lawsuits, other claims, equal-MENT problems, environmental issues; liability is not yet fixed either in whether it exists or in amount.  Do you disclose at all?  W/ certain claims, disclosure would damage company’s position.  Even if you do mention it, you can’t say anything that could be used as evidence.  

a.
Conflict: 

i.
Accting view: investors should be made fully aware of anything affecting value of investment; 

ii.
Legal view: litigants in case ought to have decision reached by judge/jury w/o having to show hand to each other and public.  

iii.
Conflict broke out in 1960s, accord reached b/tw AICPA and ABA, saying that when there is probable outcome, attorney should to be directed by client to disclose to CPA, but when outcome is uncertain, surrounding info is all that can be disclosed.



5. 
Material post financial-statement events.


G. 
Segment information.


H.
Asides taught w/ this info:

1.
We have no way to evaluate performance of public institution w/o general acting principles; efficiency concepts not based on accounting aren’t going work.  All institutions that run on money should be transparent about ops.  But we don’t know how much it costs to operate law school – we know what payroll is, what electric is, but we don’t know how much it costs to run library, or to hold one accting class; business knows this info about their ops.

2.
Larger philosophy of course: we value, control, adjust, and subject to scrutiny what we measure, and accting profession is systemized way to measure concepts and value, control, adjust these things.  

3.
Govn’tl v. Financial Accting: what kind of income statement does govn’t institution prepare?  Nothing.  Only prepare statement showing where money came from and where it was spent, and they generally first prepare budget of where they expect money to come from and where they expect to spend.  Budget is not income statement, there is no performance measurement, only account for receipt and distribution.  When you hold people accountable, you get different kinds of conduct.

III. 
Mgmt’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ops (“MD&A”): 


A. 
Intro:

1. 
MD&A not required by GAAP, but by SEC regulation: imposed on filing companies (500 + shareholders of equity security or $5 + mil revenues) by 1934 Act. Once trivial, today v. important doc, including info not found in financial statements. More substantive and interpretive info, like exposure to competition, credit and liquidity risks, etc.


2. 
Therefore, MD&A is generally available only from public companies.

3. 
MD&A is not audited, but is subject to review: “cold comfort” review, looked at to determine if anything stated represents facial violation of GAAP, but auditors have no liability w/ regard to this. 
a.
Liability of experts extends only so far as portions of statement they have examined. So, company would be liable for errors in this, but auditors would not. Representational liability of auditors is v. important, large verdicts/settlements, huge prof liability; 
b.
First line Q is, to what reps does representational liability extend?  Not universal, in some countries (like Germany), auditors do give opinions on MD&A, so their representational liability extends to this.  Sarbanes-Oxley makes it look like US will move, not to int’l accting stds, but to int’l stds of auditing.
B. 
Results of ops: one of most significant components.  Breakdown into both category and segment.


1. 
Detailed review by category of revenue and expense.



2. 
Detailed segment information.

C. 
Risk disclosures: one of most significant components.  Forward-looking, assessing inflation, competition, liquidity, etc. risks.


1. 
Liquidity and capital resources.



2. 
Factors that could affect future results: risk factors.

Inventory AcCting

I.  
Inventories – Determination of Cost:

A.  
Manufacturing inventories: generally have inventory in, 3 categories, raw materials, work-in-process, finished goods.



1. 
Direct materials: raw materials

2. 
Direct labor: production line labor; cost accting figures out how much labor goes into each item; this is as much for mgmt decision-making as for external reporting.



3. 
Overhead: production line overhead

4. 
Allocation methods and cost accounting: single most important factor into net income.

B.  
Merchandising inventories: 
1.
Inventory flow conventions: car dealer example.  Car comes into dealership, costs dealer $27,000, for sale for $36,000. When calculating inventory costs what do we include?  Normally, include costs related to inventory that company incurs to bring in product and make it available for sale (freight, insurance, any other costs related to inventory itself necessary to make it available for sale, like detailing, finishing costs), not cost of showroom, guards, etc.  
a.
Ex: wine store, some rent can be included in inventory b/c part of making ready for sale involves aging; adding to value of inventory simply by storage is legit inventory cost, sort of like manufacturing cost but not.  Most of time, however, holding inventory doesn’t change value; there must be true change in inventory (holding vintage car/painting wouldn’t count in inventory costs).

b.
Financing interest, freight interest on getting car to dealer, overhead at dealership?  Financing interest is considered period expense, not part of inventory.  Say dealer incurred $100,000 of interest cost each year, on 100 cars, so $1,000 financing cost on each car.  It’s really Q of when recognized, if put in inventory, recognized only when car is sold, if not, then written down immediately.  

2.
In any given year, inventory costs change.  If dealing w/ completely fungible inventory (gallons of gas); 5 installments, valued at 5, 5.5, 6, 6.5, 7.  Costs go up, selling price stays at $10.  Sell 3,  but which ones, for purposes of inventory?  If they sold first 3, then sold 16.5 worth, profit of 13.5.  If they sold last 3, they sold 19.5 worth, profit of 10.5.  
a.
W/ many products, there is specific id of inventory, but this inventory technique is explicitly forbidden by accting.  Company cannot identify specifically what inventory was sold and account for it that way.  This would give mgmt too much free reign, create impossibility of audit.
b.
Could prescribe specific rule for everyone, but we don’t have std rule, just three different conventions that can be adopted by company for way that inventory is assumed to flow.  (Some exceptional variations, but not many, WIFO – whenever in, first out, used by IRS.)

3.
Periodic inventory: shown by worksheet, counts # of units at beginning (opening inventory), adds # of units purchased, getting total inventory.  To find out how many are left at end – perform physical count!  Records could be inaccurate b/c of theft, undercount/overcount from manufacturer, loss, damage, spoilage. Important to find out what happened to everything in order to avoid inefficiencies, but that is internal inventory control, not cost accting issue.

4.
FIFO: first-in, first-out; like pipeline w/ numbered balls in it, so that inventory is treated like continuous flowing process; most natural inventory technique.

a.
Assume that goods sold were first purchased.  Calculate cost of goods sold indirectly by cost of what’s left, working backwards (LISH ( Last In Stays Here). (Unrealistic, and actually impossible.)

b.
Worksheet: FIFO of $144 and 12 units was reached by determining last ones that came in, then finding cost of ending inventory, then subtracting from total to find cost of goods sold.  Counting backwards.

c.
Opening inventory (55) + Purchases (67.5+80.5+144) = Available for Sale (347) ( - Ending Inventory (FIFO = 144) = Cost of Goods Sold (203).  Then, you could have Sales (say 400) – Cost of Goods Sold (203) = Gross Profits (197)

d.
Fundamental principles of accting in US say that taxpayer must fairly reflect income, but there are dozens of exceptions, so you can often use 2 different methods b/c there are so many differences b/tw US tax and accting law.  But, for inventory, by Code Provision, you have to apply same technique on both occasions.  

i.
(Depreciation – you may not apply same principle, b/c tax req is forbidden by accting principles.)

5.
LIFO: last-in, first-out; like urn w/ numbered balls in it, last one dropped in is first out; aka bureaucratic method; not very realistic in most cases, b/c this causes valuation of stuff at bottom to be very out-of-date.
a.
Generally only applied when it provides tax savings. (FISH( First In Stay Here)  Makes inventory # v. out of date in $s, so long as there is inflation.  Cost of goods sold using LIFO is going to be higher than using FIFO, b/c it is feeding into cost formula newer (most likely higher) prices.

b.
Tax: tendency is that taxes will be lower for company that follows LIFO, until they sell off opening inventory and recognize extraordinary profit, but companies don’t really intend to do this.  So, LIFO results in permanent and continuous reduction of taxes, particularly in periods of inflation.

c.
Why is LIFO allowed?  B/c LIFO introduces most recent costs, it provides more recent net income #.  And, not allowing it would be to tax inflation, v. unpopular.

d.
Siegel thinks that LIFO is unsound b/c it doesn’t reflect anything real (inflation, actual sales), but it simply serves to save money.

6.
Weighted average: like tank (or coffee maker), everything falls in top, gets mixed around, comes out other end; not widely used, but common in some industries, like natural resource exploration. Essence of simplicity, takes total cost and divides by total # of available units, then multiples by ending inventory to find average cost. Might be good for industries, like coffee, w/ only gradual inflation, but price bounces around a lot.
a.
This is pretty accurate description of physical inventory flow, and 
b.
Always ends up producing value for inventory and cost of goods sold b/tw extremes (FIFO and LIFO), creating less volatility in flow of inventory value.



7. 
Why does GAAP allow variations in inventory principles?




a.
Choice of Method:

i.
LIFO decreases cost of ending inventory, resulting in increasing cost of goods sold and decreasing gross profit.  Most of time, company will pick type of accting that makes profitability look better, but sometimes would do otherwise, perhaps in jurisdictions w/ high corp income taxes.

ii.
If you are looking at financial health of company, you would like to max cash flows in early years, so reduction of taxes in means something.  So, you might be willing to trade off what looks good accting-wise now for what will get you better cash flow today so that financial health is better long-term.

iii.
Ending inventory of Y1 becomes beginning inventory of Y2; implication is that if Y1 # is lower, it will reduce income of Y1, but it will increase income of Y2.  Therefore, you have impact on 2+ years.

· What makes company look good?  Shareholders and analysts are looking for trends over a period of years.  

· In chart, using LIFO produces better trend in cost of goods sold.  In periods of rising prices, LIFO exaggerates increase, as well as being good for taxes.  FIFO, in period of rising prices, increases cost of ending inventory, so cost of goods sold goes down.

iv.
When you adopt techniques, you set boundaries for reporting for component of net income, out into future, b/c in end all will wash out, but end is v. long time away for going concerns.  We are in fact, for time that is relevant to us, causing a difference in net income.

v.
Is company allowed to change from one method to another?  There is one-shot change, no consent needed.  But, hard to change back; possibly there is period of time that any change for tax purposes can only be made by filing consent request w/ IRS, and required upon change, that they make payments as they would have paid under old accting method.  Consent is one that prevents tax arbitrage, so not cost-free process.  From accting POV, change is always permissible, but comes w/ reporting reqs.  Back-and-forth changes would be difficult, and change back-and-forth w/in 5 years is unheard of.

f.
Exam Q: What effect does lowering cost of goods sold have on cash flow?  No effect on cash flow, unless we take into account difference on taxation.  It should only effect net income, b/c you don’t receive or pay any more cash for inventory.  For tax purposes, lower value you put on inventory, better effect on cash flow.
g.
Summary:

i.
FIFO: cost of goods sold lower, shows reasonably current inventory cost.

ii.
LIFO: higher cost of goods sold, will show dated current cost of inventory.

iii.
Only difference is in amount of taxes; pre-tax cash flow of company is not going to be affected by choice of inventory method. 
II.  
Inventories – Balance Sheet Value:


A.  
Lower-of-cost-or-mkt:


1. 
Calculation of cost of inventory:  see above.




2.  
Mkt: replacement cost presumed.

a.
Suppose we have inventory of 10 items valued at $1000 (method unimportant).  Normally “value” as we understand it means replacement cost, and often value goes down, particularly in technology.  Suppose something goes down to $80 in (wholesale) mkt value, so total of $800.  GAAP require us to write it down this at end of year, not next year, b/c of principle of lower-of-cost-or-mkt.  Company has NO discretion.

b.
For tax purposes, it’s FORBIDDEN to write down to mkt; only time you can write down loss is when you realize it by either selling or formally junking / disposing.  Tax laws are w/in discretion of Congress, and they create this prohibition b/c they want to maximize tax base, collect taxes now, when they can, and to minimize fraud and manipulation inherit in leaving decision to company.

c.
Allowed to write down, but never up; once written down, can’t go back up.  Conservatism principle, idea that there are some instances in which event takes place that creates substantial likelihood of loss, so we will recognize it as loss, even before it takes place.  One-way bias in reaction to 1930s, but worldwide rule.

d.
But, company can still manipulate, creating appearance of growth by writing down inventory in year that would be bad year anyway, so that next year looks great.  Happens often after acquisition, b/c acquiring company wants to show that post-acquisition, it turned company around, so during year of acquisition it makes acquired company look really bad, writes everything down, shifting back costs to earlier year, making next year look good.  Not really “conservative.”
3.  
Mkt: not to exceed net realizable value. Although replacement cost is assumed to be value of mkt, there is ceiling and floor on market value; if net realizable value is lower than replacement cost, then cost becomes net realizable value.  If you can’t dispose of something at replacement cost, you have to use net realizable value.  



4.  
Mkt: no less than net realizable value less normal profit margin.  Floor!


5.  
Criticisms of lower-of-cost-or-mkt.

a.
When mkt price has come down, that implies that in process of holding / manufacturing inventory, company has suffered built-in loss.  (You would normally think that manufacturing would lead to built-in gain, but conservatism principle requires that we recognize inevitable loss now.)  Effect of lower-of-cost-or-mkt approach is to drive back costs into earlier year, and in some senses this is not conservative b/c it tilts income curve.

b.
This is another opportunity for post-acquisition / post-transaction litigation, b/c there were most likely representations about balance sheet items that other party wants to challenge as violations of accting principles as to how things were written down (b/c this is judgment call that can be second-guessed).  This can be protected against by putting threshold term into reps, like “material,” though materiality is subjective as well, or a catch-all clause limiting claims to those that in aggregate exceed $X.

c.
Look at chart: presumption is that mkt value is replacement cost, and that is used to compare cost that comes through LIFO or FIFO.  

i.
But, if replacement cost is changed to $11.50, FIFO and weighted average change, LIFO did not; if replacement cost hits $10, then everything comes down.  Writing down on ending inventory increases cost of goods sold, loss is buried in cost of goods sold.  

ii.
What happens if replacement cost goes down very deeply (to $5, for ex), but if company can sell goods for more than replacement cost?  (This might happen w/ inventory like parts to obsolete technology b/c while they are no longer used in new items, these are v. valuable to those who need replacements.)  Presumption is that mkt is replacement cost, but it could go up to net realizable value (ceiling) or down to net realizable value minus normal profit margin (floor).  
iii.
So, if replacement cost goes down to 11, but net realizable value goes down to 10.50, “mkt” value is 10.50 instead of 11.  (Q: what if there is no mkt?  (1) Stick w/ cost, or (2) estimate.  Could be seen in art mkt.)

d.
Once you start specifying detailed rules, particularly if detailed rules are not perfectly justified by economics, it is very difficult to stop at just one level of detail.  So simple principle of lower-of-cost-or-mkt comes w/ a lot of “what ifs.”  One of charges of Sarbanes-Oxley is to do investigation of principle-based accting, to try to avoid these little detailed rules.

e.
How do you determine mkt value w/ these 3 different #s?  Find out what replacement cost is in actual mkt, find out what net realizable value from your own #s, find NRV – NPM.  Then, take # in middle – median (not mean).  This will always be right # for “mkt” value.  Then, compare this w/ #s reached by LIFO, FIFO, and weighted average.  (Normal Profit Margin is what we have called Normal Gross Profit before.)

d.

B.  
Change of inventory method or other accting principles: what happens if we use FIFO in year 1 and LIFO in year 2?  There are a series of disclosures that accounting requires.  


1. 
No restatement of earlier financial statements.



2. 
Disclosure of change and its effect on net income and balance sheet.

a.
First, when there is change, fact of change must be disclosed in notes.  
b.
Then, company must disclose in same note whether change was consistent w/ GAAP principles (and sometimes change is not acceptable).  
c.
Third, accountants, in their opinion, must acknowledge change and issue opinion as to whether they agree or disagree w/ change (“fairly present”).  Notes also have to show financial effect of change on balance sheet and the income statement.



3. The problem of consistency.

Accting for Fixed Assets – Depreciation and Asset Impairment:

I.  
Fixed Assets – Determination of Cost: basic idea is that we buy long-lived asset, like truck, for $100,000, and w/ useful life of 5-10 years.  From accting POV, how do we economically allocate cost over period benefited?  Allocation method and judgments we choose will effect income over entire life of asset.  Say we get $25,000 revenue from truck, w/ costs of $5,000, each year.  We could, saying truck lasts 10 years, allocate cost at $10,000 each year, so that we get $10,000 benefit each year.  Even if truck lasts only 5 years, it does no good to restate this, but in 5th year, when you dump truck, you have to also write off $50,000 remaining to be written off.  If, however, you thought it would last 5 years, write it off over 5, but then it lasts 10 years, you have peculiar result that first 5 years show net income of $0 and last 5 years show income of $20,000, though nothing really changed.

A.  
Initial acquisition cost: bring fixed asset onto books at cost.  

1. 
Cost basis: upward revaluation prohibited; land tends to be most sensitive to this, but buildings and some other productive assets also are; machinery is not sensitive to this. 

a.
What happens if value goes up, like w/ land?  If you carry it at cost, doesn’t this make balance sheet misleading?  Yes, but accting prof says this isn’t their job to correct.  FAS 33 had said that current value should be shown, but this was w/drawn as mandatory, so companies no longer feel need to disclose.  
b.
Some people argue that mkt somehow knows mkt value to assets, but this simply cannot be relied on.  (There is nothing to prevent you from disclosing fair mkt value in notes or MDMA, but this really isn’t done.)

2. 
Purchase price; donations of assets; assets acquired for stock: if we don’t have cost for asset, but instead a shareholder or someone contributes asset to corp (generally for stock received), general rule is that carrying value is fair mkt value at time of acquisition.

3. 
Installation costs, training, interest expense, etc: normally accting shows that machine or whatever has total cost of cost of machine plus cost of installation, freight, etc.  You can choose how interest expenses are incurred, such as while building is under construction, as either period interest expense or included in cost of building.

B.  
Depreciation: primary income statement purpose is allocation of cost to expense economic life;  primary balance sheet purpose is to disclose percentage/portion that has been allocated to expense (see below); while this doesn’t tell you value of fixed assets, it does tell you life of item, how far item is in to its use.  Fixed assets – accumulated depreciation = ??? (see HP notes).

1. 
Estimates of useful life and residual value: What difference does it make how you depreciate item?  It alters whole course of income over relevant period.  Three variables:

a.
Estimation of useful life: some companies have been in business for so long that they are great at estimating life of commonly used products.  Physical life is easy to estimate (like for trucks); economic life is a bit harder to estimate, however (like w/ computers).  

b.
Residual value


c.
Depreciation method

2. 
Straight-line depreciation: by time, units or other measures: most common.  
a.
Cost is $100,000, 5 year useful life, 20,000 residual value.  So, cost is $80,000 divided by 5 = $16,000 / year.  Even depreciation.  Virtue is that it is simple, but it is rarely realistic representation of actual decline in value.
3. 
Accelerated depreciation, primarily double-declining-balance: also widely used, but broad category.  Front-loaded, heavy depreciation in early years, less in later.  
a.
Most widely used type is “declining-balance depreciation,” which takes graded depreciation rate and applies it to reducing amount.  
b.
If truck lasts 5 years, you would say depreciation is 1/5 per year or 20%.  Double-declining method would say take depreciation of 40%, apply 40% to first year cost, so $40,000 depreciation in year one, declining balance is $60,000, so $24,000 depreciation in year two, declining balance is $36,000, so depreciation of about $14,000 in year three.  Stop when you hit residual value, only $20,000, don’t go below this, in year four, declining value would have been about $22,000, so only depreciate $2000 in this year.  
c.
There is some logic in this method b/c value does decrease something like this, and maintenance costs level out more w/ this method.  Just regular declining balance method can be based on any number, but general either double or one-and-a-half times.



4. 
Change of depreciation method.

5. 
Depreciation for tax purposes: 
a.
If you are permitted to use either method, as in US, which one would you use for tax purposes, and why?  Accelerated is better b/c you can deduct as business expense more in early years.  Money you save today, you can invest today, so if you can defer payment of tax, you are in net dollars ahead.

b.
For accting purposes, straight-line depreciation is always permissible, as is anything up to double-declining balance.  It is only permissible to depreciate down to residual value.

c.
For tax purposes, this has gone through several changes.  Today, taxpayers have two choices, either straight-line depreciation over “guide-line” useful life, or using guideline life, you can follow chart that applies Accelerated Cost Recovery System (ACRS), which, depending on item, applies either double or one-and-a-half declining balance, depreciating down to residual value, then shifting to straight-line to depreciate to zero.  This was to facilitate capital formulation by shortening depreciation period, but this produces disconnect b/tw tax and accting world, and you basically cannot apply same techniques b/c ACRS guideline lives are lower than economic life expectancy.  Overwhelmingly, you will find ACRS applied for tax purposes, and straight-line for accting.

d.
If asset is still being used, even if fully depreciated, it is shown on balance sheet w/ full cost and full depreciation.  Seeing assets carried at full depreciation shows that company’s assets are old, probably need to be replaced or repaired.

e.
W/ straight line depreciation, effect is that net income increases once asset is fully depreciated but not yet replaced.  But, if estimated useful life correctly, they would replace machine, so income should remain constant.  
f.
What happens if machine really has useful life of 10 years instead of 6, but we depreciated at 6?  Net income increases, cash flow unchanged.  So, using cash flow as test of net income, we get different view of how company is operating.  But, if we decide to use 10 years, real useful life, net income shows flat trend, somewhere in b/tw two values; companies would rather show upward trend.

g.
What’s test of useful life?  Future is simply replication of past in many cases, but it is harder for some things, like buildings, which last long time if not torn down.

h.
The declining balance w/ useful life of 10 would be infinite series, never reaching 0, so when carrying value comes very far down, calculation generally shifts to straight line to go to zero.  (Tend to use declining balance for first third to half of useful life, then shift to straight line.)  B/c of this problem, for declining balance, we use entire price of asset, not taking into account residual value, and then calculate by factor, general 1.5 or 2.

i.
Declining balance leads to less net income and therefore greater tax savings in early years, then trend is reversed.  While ultimately, taxes have to be paid, this is “later,” often that is long time away.  Result is to front-end-load investment; this is conscious econ policy of creating incentives to capital investment.  Companies always like cash flow earlier, b/c they can pay down debt w/o interest, or make new investment, or anything else.

j.
Depreciation: no mandate to use same method for tax and accting, and almost all companies use straight line for accting purposes and ACRS for tax.



4. 
Change of depreciation method.



5. 
Depreciation for tax purposes.



6. 
Non-depreciable assets: land.

a.
Land-as-land: not depreciated, carried at original cost, regardless of whether it becomes more/less valuable.  
i.
Produces interesting problems b/c what happens when land is improved, in order to create a building on it?  Are subdividing, roads, electric lines, etc., depreciable?  No, this is considered attached to land, not building.  
ii.
At what point does it become building and not land?  (i.e. excavation, digging foundations)  This is dispute occurs more w/ tax ramifications, not accting.  
iii.
What does tearing down of old building count as?  For both accting and tax, this is generally considered part of cost of land.  
iv. 
Soft costs (can be depreciated) v. hard costs (land, things that cannot be depreciated).  Generally, if argument can be made for useful life, this can be likely be depreciated.

b.
Ex: pay $1000 for land w/ oil underneath, cost of land-as-land was $400, cost of oil right was $600.  What kind of asset is this?  
i.
Oil right is depreciable, b/c we are physically taking away what is there.  Generally depreciated on straight line basis, w/ respect to how much oil you think is there, corresponding to useful life.  
ii.
Suppose you depreciate to zero, all oil you think is there, but it’s still coming?  For tax purposes only, there is system of depreciation of oil rights in US, that goes on forever and ever; if well-head price for oil is $10 /barrel, as you sold each barrel, you got 2.80 (28%) depletion allowance.  You could get depletion allowance greater than cost.  (Created by Congress to incentivize oil and mineral exploration.)
c.
Ex: building, bought for $100,000, want to depreciate by straight line, estimated as having residual value of $20,000 and useful life of 40 years.  Depreciate at rate of $2000 / year.  
i.
Suppose it was depreciated for 15 years, carrying cost at $70,000.  Now, building needs improvements, cost of $50,000; building had useful life of 25 years, but now, renovation extends useful life to 40 years, w/ residual value of $20,000.  How to deal w/ this?  
ii.
First thing TBD is whether it was truly repair or renovation.  When you make changes that extend useful life, you add to cost of building, recalculate everything from after renovation.  Take remaining carrying value, $70,000, add renovation costs, making it $120,000, subtract residual of $20,000, and depreciate from there.  Same for tax and accting.

d.
Aside: generally use same methods for tax and accting in all aspects, except when accting does not “present fairly,” or when otherwise indicated w/in Code.


C.  
Other similar cost-allocation concepts:



1. 
Depletion.



2. 
Amortization.


D.  
Repairs and capital improvements:



1. 
Income effects of expensing vs. capitalization.



2. 
Criterion: extension of utility or useful life.



3. 
Depreciation recalculated for current and future years.


E.  
Balance sheet disclosure of fixed assets:



1. 
Original cost.



2. 
Accumulated depreciation.



3. 
General information on depreciation methods and useful lives.

II. 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:  up until 1990s, we didn’t have such a safety-valve for long-lived assets, like lower-of-cost-or-mkt for inventory.   Developed in reaction to RE boom then bust, where RE was carried at cost, though worth a small percentage of that.
A. 
Original rules (before 1995 and FAS 121)



1. 
Long-lived assets reflected at cost less depreciation/amortization.



2. 
When useful life or utility declined, depreciation schedule was changed.



3. 
Write-down of fixed assets was extremely rare.
B. 
Genesis of new rules: all these indicated that accting rules had to change w/ respect to valuation of assets.

1. 
Major business and bank failures following RE boom of ‘80’s.



2. 
Non-performing RE (and other leased assets), secured by non-recourse debt.



3. 
Little or no disclosure of impairment of assets or associated debt.


C. 
New rules (FAS 144, replacing FAS 121): high point, ¶ 7.

1. 
Impairment defined: basic concept of 144.  If carrying value exceeds fair value, then we say asset is impaired.  This doesn’t necessarily mean we write it down, or “recognize” it. 
2. 
Recognition: required only when carrying amount is not recoverable and exceeds fair value of asset.  (i.e., company doesn’t expect to get carrying value back in cash flows.)  

3. 
Test: does sum of undiscounted cash flows expected from use and eventual disposition of asset exceed carrying value?  Econ test that is necessarily forward-looking, so necessarily based on company’s judgment as to whether they will be able to recover carrying value.  

a.  
Ex: Building w/ carrying value of $100,000, assume that fair value (even more ambiguous than fair mkt value) is $80,000.  
b.
Step (1): Is there impairment?  Fair value is less than carrying value.  Asset is impaired.  
c.
Step (2): Must we recognize impairment?  What’s recoverable amount?  Undiscounted cash flow.  Cash flow in is rent, cash flow out is maintenance, find Net Cash.  Building has remaining life of 10 years, and each year Net Cash will be $10,000.  So, 10 x $10,000 = gross undiscounted cash flow of $100,000.  If gross undiscounted cash flow is equal to or exceeds carrying value, then we do not have to recognize impairment.  
d.
Step (3): If we must recognize impairment, how much?  If gross undiscounted cash flow were $90,000, it is impaired and must be recognized, but this isn’t value to which it is written down to.  (Gross cash flow never used as measure for anything.)  New carrying cost basis is fair value.

4. 
When is testing for impairment appropriate: anytime there is significant decrease in mkt value, operating or cash flow losses, adverse change in legal factors or business climate, more, found in 144, ¶ 8.  (Wasn’t intended as avalanche of testing everything for impairment, but this is what it did; big part of every audit.)
5. 
New cost basis: fair value.  (Lower than recoverable cash flow, b/c hard to imagine case where fair value exceeds recoverable cash flow, b/c then just get rid of asset.)  But, more complicated than this.  Basic answer is that adjusted carrying amount should be fair value, but how do you measure fair value?  
a.
Normal presumption is that unless there is ready mkt into which asset could be sold (rarely), appropriate measure of value impaired asset is discounted present value of future cash flows.  (¶¶19, 22, 23.)  
b.
But, mkt value is preferred, if available.

6. 
Discounted present value of cash flows is often best available technique for revaluation of impaired assets.  Fundamental idea is that you produce chart of what you project cash flows will be into future, and then using appropriate discount return rate to reflect value back (down) to present.  
a.
There was (and is) an established method for calculating discounted cash flow, but FASB decided it would adopt Statement of Concepts 7 to indicate its approaches, of which there are variety, but not widely used outside accting world.  (We are not responsible for concept of discounted cash flows.)

7. 
After impaired assets are written down, they may not be revalued up: one-way write.  An impairment loss is viewed as component of net operating income, and would be separately shown if aggregate is material.

D. 
Moral of the story: driven by conservatism, we want things written down.  There is incentive to write down to reasonable value b/c of competing obligations. 



1. 
Accting is still a work in progress.

a.  
Judgment calls: we can definitely say when something is impaired, but it is a little more complicated as to what # it should be written down.  

b.
Companies will written down assets as much as possible, b/c if they are going to have impairment loss, they may as well have big one so that they don’t have to do it again next year; this frees subsequent years of expenses, making them look better.  (Taxes are not helped until asset is disposed of, so no need for write down big for tax reasons.)  

c.
But, they may not write down much at all, b/c this reflects poorly on mgmt, and to extent that mgmt is concerned about having balance sheet that is reasonably reflective of fair value, to have sharp write down would cause massively undervalued balance sheet if economy bounced back quickly.  Also, company may have loan agreements w/ banks and others that have default provisions that are triggered by significant write downs.  



2. 
Major accting reform usually follows financial disasters.

Accounting for Investments


I.  
Categories of Equity Investments: continuum of ownership, w/ accting treatment changing as ownership interest increases.  (Lines drawn not arbitrary, but it could have been drawn in other places.)  Generally, ownership interests tend to bunch as low levels, just above 20%, and b/tw 50% and 100%, for operational and functional reasoning.
A. 
Portfolio investments: less than 20% of stock of company; held only for investment purposes.  
B. 
Equity method investments: b/tw 20% and control (previously 50%, now defined functionally and can be less than 50% if “controlling block” is owned); treats owner as having fractional ownership interest in company.

C. 
Controlling investments: application of consolidated accting required.  Bunching around 50% b/c of joint ventures.
II.  
The Equity Method: intellectually appealing.  (Objection: this doesn’t look at stock market, just at the company.  Portfolio method doesn’t look at company, just at stock market.)
A.  
Investments entered at original cost: carried at initial acquisition price for first year.  Imagine A buys 25% of B for $1 mil, investment carried on books as l-t investment.  
B.  
Adjustment of investment carrying value and net income for proportionate share of income and loss: treatment each successive year.  Suppose investment net worth goes up $500,000, so A writes up carrying value at 25% of that, so $125,000 increase, but not shown as income b/c not earned yet.  If B lost $400,000 next year, A would write down investment by $100,000, showing “loss on investment.”  Depends on each year’s income/loss of B, up/down price of B’s stock doesn’t matter – it’s shown as if A is fractional owner of B, not as shareholder.
C.  
Dividends and other distributions reflected as reduction of investment: if B pays $100,000 total dividends, A receives $25,000, and treats this as ROI, subtracting from carrying value of $1 mil.  
III.  
Consolidated Accting: theory is that when one corp controls another, for accting purposes, they should be treated as one.  (Big issue in consolidated accting, and Enron, is how A accounts for entities it creates, B, which on their face, have controlling interest in C, but in reality are controlled by A?  Enron dealt w/ C-parties and reported profit, but wouldn’t have been able to if subsidiaries were treated as controlled by A instead of independent.  This created profit that didn’t exist, led to insolvency.  So, question is whether entity is Q or non-Q, “qualified.”)

A.  
Financial statements combined, item-for-item.


B.  
Difficulties with foreign exchange translation: complication.
C.  
Elimination of inter-company accounts: money owed, transactions b/tw companies, eliminated b/c they cancel out.
D.  
Accting for minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries: act as if at 100% level, then show all minority interests in liability-type entries as “minority-ownership in consolidated subsidiaries.”
E.  
Problem of creditors and investors in consolidated subsidiaries: for whom are financial statements prepared?  Investors and creditors.  Even though A is reporting as though A and B are one entity, entities for corp law purposes are in fact separate, so while this is irrelevant on equity side, on credit side (B has no shareholders) this is important, and creditor of B who relies on only financial statements he will get (consolidated) does not have access to assets of consolidated group, only to those of B, so financial sheets are misleading to creditors b/c they contain assets creditors cannot reach.  (Creditors of A can’t reach assets of B either.)

1.
Are subsidiary financial statements of B prepared?  Yes, there is no way in which you can prepare consolidated financial statements w/o having financial data to consolidate.  (If companies had one accting system and combined accounts, answer might be different, but this never happens.)  Audit program includes exam of consolidating sheets used to make consolidated sheets.
2.
Are separate financial sheets of separate companies separately audited?  Often but not always.  If B is foreign subsidiary, yes, there will be separate audits w/o auditors from foreign country, b/c US auditor can’t have assurance of accuracy of audit of foreign data if they are in US.

3.
Are subsidiary financial statements available to creditors?  Overwhelmingly no!  But, if creditor is big enough, he can demand those statements, and will get them.  (Also possible is guarantee from parent corp, if subsidiary financial statements aren’t available.  More often used as bargaining chip to get subsidiary’s statements.)
IV. 
New Accting for Investments in Debt and Equity Securities: only for portfolio interests.

A. 
Original Rules, prior to 1993:



1. 
Debt generally held at amortized cost.

2. 
Equity securities valued at aggregate: lower of cost-or-market, w/ write-up permitted back to original cost, but no higher.  (Illogical to Siegel.)

B. 
Genesis of New Rules: 

1. 
Same circumstances as impairment of long-lived assets: bonds and debt instruments held at cost suffered dramatically from same impairment as did RE market.  (These were high-return, high-risk debt instruments w/ companies that became heavily leveraged; bonds subordinated in payment of interest and principles deeply of all other debt, last in line except for common stock.)  Debt carried at $1000/bond dropped in value to $250, but never written down.

2. 
But FASB opened Pandora’s infamous box, couldn’t resist looking inside: looked at investments, across the board, and revised into Rule 115.



3. 
What they found was – for accting – revolutionary.

C. 
New Rules: FAS 115, 130:



1. 
Three methods of accting for investments:




a. 
Current investments: FAS 115, for portfolio investments.




b. 
Equity method.



c. 
Consolidated financial statements.
2. 
Three categories of investment, determined largely by intent: “security” in tax means a relative l-t investment, as opposed to stock; for accting, “security” means any debt or equity instrument.  Accting method based on subjective intent of company, but it can’t engage in accting arbitrage/fraud, by changing intent day-to-day, b/c special disclosure is required.

a. 
Held to maturity (debt only, even if some stocks have maturity date): investing company intends to hold until paid off. 

b. 
Available for sale: possibility of sale always present, but not actively being bought and sold, company is not “day-trader.” 
c. 
Trading securities: securities that company holds w/ intention of trading regularly.

3. 
Held to maturity valued at amortized cost, subject to impairment test.  
a.
Company buys $1000 bond, if it intends to hold it to maturity, 10 years from now, how is it shown on balance sheet?  At cost.  
b.
What happens if mkt price drops to $900?  No change to balance sheet.  (Price could drop if mkt interest rate rises, b/c bonds have fixed rates, so price has to fall if higher rates could be had elsewhere.)  
c.
If company plans on selling bond, drop in price is important, but if they plan to hold to maturity, then just b/c interest rate varies w/ mkt price, there is no reason to write down value.  
d.
But, if there are insolvency problems, company skips interest payment, this will cause decline in mkt price of different character, b/c likelihood is that bond won’t reach full value.  Then, there is possible impairment (permanent reduction in expected cash flow), so price can be written down.  FAS 115 addresses this. 

4. 
Available for sale and trading securities subject to new rules: 

a. 
Carried on balance sheet at fair value: best evidence of value of publicly traded stocks and bonds is mkt price.  



b. 
Gains and losses reflected on financial statements.

c. 
For trading securities (those is which company intends to trade in short term), gains and losses recognized directly in income statement, appearing generally under heading of investment income or loss.

d. 
For available for sale securities (company doesn’t intend to trade immediately, but could), gains and losses are reflected in separate category of comprehensive income, one step further down on financial statements.  (FAS 130)

i.
Why split the hair so finely?  Rule flies in face of all prior GAAP, not just requiring that valuation be at mkt value, but also requiring, in income statement, that income not yet realized by sale still be recognized loss/gain, just b/c there is a mkt.


D. 
What is revolutionary:

1. 
Application of fair value and mark-to-mkt:
· There was precedent, but only for downward revaluation, e.g., inventory.  Different than fair value used before.  Normally, value of buildings, inventories, etc., doesn’t fluctuate rapidly, but stock prices are highly volatile.  
· No clear guidance as to how to pick mkt values in volatile exchange mkt. Problem is that when accountants pick value, it’s right at that time, but when auditor gets to it, price may be entirely different.  Disclosure may have deception components, conveying sense that price is correct, when it isn’t (and actual portfolio isn’t listed, so reader couldn’t even look up current prices).
2. 
New concept of “comprehensive income” for certain gains and losses.  (Income that hasn’t been realized by sale.)
3. 
Intent-based characterization of assets and accting for them.  (These are all stocks and bonds, and historically were treated just as that.  This is worrisomely subjective.)
E. 
What comes next:

1. 
Fair valuation of derivatives: FAS 133, 138.  
a.
Derivative: kind of financial instrument whose value is derived from another instrument, like call option; >3000 types of derivatives.  
b.
FASB (and SEC), after study, argued that b/c of existence of mkt, these should be valued at mkt, so gains and losses have to be recognized.

2. 
Problems of volatility: FASB chose most volatile assets to subject to mark-to-mkt rule.
a.
Valuing derivatives at mkt is not logical, as stock prices are volatile, but options are hugely more so, and applying marked-to-mkt approach shows extreme values that may or may not be remotely accurate even the next day.

3. 
Will other assets and liabilities ultimately be subject to similar rules?  If marked-to-mkt is good idea for some assets, why not all?  If it’s ok for assets w/ public mkt, that are very volatile, why not use it for assets w/ semi-public mkt that are not nearly so volatile (buildings), that we now carry incorrect values for.  May will be changes in future.

a.
Seigel’s theory: thinks result is going to lead to approach that is rough equivalent of mkt valuation for everything, and that nature of modern technology is such that someone will move to monthly/weekly/real time financial statements (force preventing this now is unwillingness, not lack of ability).

F.
Why would company invest in marketable securities (not its own stock) anyway?

1.
Corp would do this b/c of cash needs/excesses, so at various periods, might retain cash for something they need to pay for in future (new machinery, etc.), so instead of putting money in bank, invest in equity.  Most companies do this on some basis.  

a.
Why buy commodity futures?  Corp might do business in other countries, have to pay/buy in local currencies, so wants to fix exchange rate for 6 months from now.

2.
What would happen if HP invested in its own stock?  Accting would treat it as reduction of outstanding stock or outstanding debt.  Company is unable to exercise any powers that come w/ stock ownership.

3.
Imagine A owns B, and B owns stock of A.  For purposes of consolidated financial sheets, this is treated as reduction in outstanding stock.  B may not vote or exercise any of powers of ownership.

Business Combinations and Intangible Assets: one of biggest accting issues: What happens when Company A acquires or combines w/ Company B?  Has to do primarily w/ accting for acquired company.

I.  
Background:  Old Accounting and the Purchase v. Pooling Distinction: basic rule today: when A acquires B, there is new basis of accountability of B, and A takes assets of B onto balance sheet as if purchased at market.

A.  
Accting Principles Board Opinion No. 16: historical accting method, no longer used.


1. 
Effects of pooling of interests:

a.
Carry-over of old asset basis: B had been carrying assets at historical cost (buildings, tangible assets) or nothing (goodwill, patents).



b.
Combination of earnings history and retained earnings.




c.
Avoidance of creation of goodwill on acquisition.

2. 
Desirability of pooling of interests: no tax benefits/detriments, but still, this was such the preferred method that ability to use it could make/break deal.
a.
Avoiding significant additional charge against net income: while balance sheet would be improved by purchase accting, company would prefer net income look good b/c this is measure of performance.  Pooling method avoids creating higher future depreciation.  



b.
Goodwill as an ephemeral and undesirable asset.

B. 
Effects of purchase accting: when A purchases B, purchase price is probably more than total assets listed on B’s financial sheets.


1. 
Assets valued at purchase price: A revalues B’s assets to allocate cost of deal.


2. 
Step-up in values of tangible assets: value tangible assets at mkt value.
3. 
Recording of acquired intangible assets: valued at difference b/tw purchase price and total value of tangible assets.


4. 
Increased financial statement values not necessarily matched by tax deductibility.


C. 
Substantive effects of accting distinction:



1. 
Transactions structured to maximize likelihood of pooling treatment.

2. 
Pooling treatment became “deal breaking” issue despite fact that mkt could realize advantages and take them into account, company still saw intrinsic value in pooling.


3. 
Int’l differences in accting.

II. 
New Rules on Business Combinations: FAS 141 (2001):

A. 
Rules apply to business combinations irrespective of form: substantive over form, move in right direction.



1. 
Combining entities may be of any form: partnership, corp, etc.


2. 
Business combination may take any form: merger, sale/purchase of assets, etc.
B. 
Purchase accting is mandatory: demands that there be an allocation according to certain rules.



1. 
Acquiring entity applies purchase accting to acquired entity.



2. 
Assets recorded at cost, equal to fair value of consideration transferred.

3. 
Aggregate cost is allocated among acquired assets, including tangible assets and intangibles other than goodwill.



4. 
Basic rule of cost allocation: 

a.
Assets to be disposed of (e.g. inventories): valued at estimated selling price minus normal profit margin.  (Right out of inventory accting.)

b.
Other assets (e.g., property, plant & equipment): valued at replacement cost, found through appraisal; certain amount of discretion, but not too much.

5. 
Goodwill recorded at: aggregate cost of acquired assets, less aggregate amount assigned to other assets.  (Basically what is left over after tangible assets are already valued.)
a.
What happens if A paid less than value of tangible assets?  Usual rule is that what is to be done is to reduce allocation to hard assets to reasonable, but lower, level, and if this isn’t enough, then note negative goodwill.

C. 
Rules are comparable to International Accting Stds: APBO 16 considered bad when it came out, but industry, SEC, wanted to keep it; but, when Int’l Accting Stds changed to only allow purchase method in all but small # of cases, FASB had to change.

III. 
Goodwill and Other Intangibles: FAS 142 (2001): businesses often worth more than sum of individual assets b/c combined business has greater power to generate income / cash flow than would be suggested by individual assets alone.  If value can’t be attributed to individual asset, greater value is characterized as goodwill (significant part of price).  Goodwill a business creates in itself never appears on balance sheet, but to extent HP obtained goodwill from Compaq, it is shown. (No showing of goodwill w/o purchase.)

A. 
Old rules: under pooling method goodwill would never appear, b/c assets of acquired company would be carried at old carrying values.



1. 
Intangibles w/ determinable useful life amortized over useful life.

2. 
Intangibles w/ indefinite useful life – including goodwill – amortized over period not to exceed 40 years.



3. 
Intangible amortization included in calculating net income from ops.

B. 
New rules: under purchase method, goodwill appears. 
1. 
Intangibles – other than goodwill (patents, trademarks, leases, certain contracts, secret processes) – are recognized (written into financial statements) if they:

· Arise from contractual or other legal rights, or

· Are separable.

2. 
Intangibles valued initially at cost, or at fair value in an aggregate acquisition.  (So if they are self-generated, the value is zero.) (You may be able to value through mkt, or through negotiated value in acquisition, or through discounted cash flow from asset.)
  


C. 
Amortization of non-goodwill intangibles:



1. 
Amortization over useful life, normally straight-line.

2. 
Useful life may be indefinite (Coke) – resulting in non-amortization – but there is high presumption against indefinite life.

3. 
Intangibles to be reviewed for impairment, annually, pursuant to FAS 144.  If event takes place that might lead to impairment, review immediately.

D. 
Amortization of goodwill: 

1. 
Presumption of non-amortization of goodwill, never write it down unless impaired. 
a.
If acquisition is profitable, never write off, if not profitable, then goodwill goes away really fast w/ impairment.  
b.
Lousy rule, but only one FASB was able to get!  Bad b/c:

i.
No evidence good will doesn’t depreciate, 
ii.
Impairment test for good will is hard to apply, and 
iii.
This stands GAAP at odds w/ rest of world, making unconservative.


2. 
Write-off – in whole or in part –  based only on impairment of “reporting unit.”  

3. 
Any impairment loss reduces net income from ops, unless loss based on discontinued ops.


E. 
What happened – why were these unusual rules adopted?

1. 
Compare int’l accting stds: mandatory amortization of goodwill, generally over max 20 year period.



2. 
American industry strongly opposed mandatory purchase accting, b/c of corresponding



mandate to amortize goodwill. Why such opposition to amortization of goodwill?  

a.
To extent that exec comp is calculated on basis of net income, bonus will decrease, as performance appears to decrease (reputation and financial damage), 

b.
It’s common to assume that mkt is lot brighter than it is.

3. 
Eventually, industry got its way: mandatory purchase, but no mandatory amortization.



4. 
Effect: goodwill write-off may be indefinitely deferred, until impairment.

5. 
But piper has to be paid: look at goodwill – and other intangible – impairment write-offs in last 2 years b/c of fall in stock mkt.  So, this produces avalanche in event of downturn.

Post-Enron – Sarbanes-Oxley and  Principle-Based Accting:

I. 
Accting’s Problems and Their Origins:


A. 
Enron, Global Crossing, WorldCom, etc:

1. 
All of these cases involved accting frauds and audit failures: these were absolutely in violation of system, not b/c of ambiguity.



2. 
In each case, high-level execs and partner-level profs were implicated.


3. 
In these and other cases, wrongdoing included: 




a.
Violation of statutory provisions on disclosure and/or activities.

b.
Breach of clear fiduciary duties by officers and others: insiders making profits.




c.
Violation of ethical stds by profs.




d.
Issuance of financial statements not in compliance w/ GAAP.




e.
Issuance of audit reports based on failure to observe GAAS.




f.
Often immense profits by insiders during corporate crisis.




g.
Huge losses by EEs , pensioners, shareholders and creditors.

4. 
These cases – individually as well as collectively – break world record for fraud, both in absolute and in relative amounts.

5. 
These cases occurred in most open, regulated, structured financial mkt in world history.


B. 
How and why – some speculations:



1. 
Increasing – and mistaken – belief that mkts regulate themselves.

2. 
Pressure for continued – and impossible – levels of income growth: demanding high rates of income leads to falsifying this income.



3. 
Concentration, growth and profit-orientation in prof practice.



4. 
Lack of education (!) on fundamentals of business performance.

5. 
Irrationality in financial mkts – are proponents of mkt efficiency too optimistic?  


C. 
Do we blame accting or accountants?

1. 
If accting/auditing was systemically defective, new principles and structures are necessary.   But, in every case, GAAP/GAAS were not followed, this was the problem!  Irregardless, PCOAB is rewriting GAAP.

2. 
If fault lay w/ individual accountants, new enforcement and review mechanisms are called for.  

3. 
Recent developments address – in varying ways – both accting and accountant.

II. 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002: lots of over-reaction and decoration, but some new and different stuff.

A. 
Public Company Accting Oversight Board (PCAOB): introduces review of conduct from outside prof.  This is conveying impression that prof is going to be seriously regulated, is this reality?


1. 
Issue: who will watch the watchers?



2. 
Peer review (previous method) by accting prof seen as ineffective.



3. 
PCAOB writes on clean slate, w/ broad powers:




a.
Mandatory registration of accting firms. §102




b.
Prescription of auditing quality control stds. §103(a)(1)




c.
Detailed statutory rules on auditing. §103(a)(2)

d.
Authority to accept existing auditing stds “or other prof stds” or adopt new stds. §103(a)(3)



4. 
Inspection of registered public accting firms. §104



5. 
Application to certain foreign accting firms. §106


B. 
Recognition of accting stds:

1. 
SEC may recognize as generally accepted – for purposes of
securities laws – accting principles established by std-setting body. §108(b)

2. 
But there are limitations on such body: 
a.
Funding: FASB must be self-funding, 
b.
Prompt consideration of emerging issues required, 
c.
Maintenance of currency of stds, etc.



3. 
Clear statutory intent: increase SEC supervision of accting std setting. 

C. 
New statutory rules on auditor independence – prohibitions (§ 201): audit firms were making a fortune on these activities.



1. 
Bookkeeping and financing info system design.

2. 
Actuarial services, appraisal and valuation, mgmt functions, legal services and expert services unrelated to audit.

3. 
Other services that PCAOB may determine by reg. (Tax advice not yet proscribed, but it may be.)

D. 
Req of study and report on principles-based accting. §108(d)


E. 
Req of audit partner rotation.  §203.


F. 
New and more stringent criminal penalties.

III. 
Principles-Based Accting:


A. 
SEC required to prepare a study on principles-based accting.


B. 
FASB study commenced in January, 2002 and presently in draft form.


C. 
Issues:



1. 
Concern w/ complex, rule-driven principles.



2. 
Emphasis on detail has delayed development and implementation of needed principles.

3. 
Int’l approach (IASB) has been more comprehensive and principle-based.

4.
CEO and CFO must now sign off on financial statements, under penalty of criminal prosecution, saying they present fairly.


D. 
Will it work in US?



1. 
Differences b/tw US and European views of rules and implementation.

2. 
Historical differences in development of accting rules, accting practice and accountants’ liabilities.

3. 
Is it practicable to change rule-driven culture after rules are 
already in place and implemented?
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